

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT NOVEMBER 7, 2019 ASSEMBLY HALL 395 MAGNOLIA RD. PINEHURST, NORTH CAROLINA

IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MEETING

I. Call to Order

- II. Approval of Minutes
 - A. July 11, 2019 Draft Minutes
- III. General Business
 - A. Review and Consider Adoption of the Revised Rules of Procedure.
- IV. Next Meeting Date
 - B. December 5, 2019 (If the Board Has Business)
- V. Motion to Adjourn

Vision: The Village of Pinehurst is a charming, vibrant community which reflects our rich history and traditions. Mission: Promote, enhance, and sustain the quality of life for residents, businesses, and visitors. Values: Service, Initiative, Teamwork, and Improvement.



IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MEETING. ADDITIONAL AGENDA DETAILS: IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MEETING



JULY 11, 2019 DRAFT MINUTES ADDITIONAL AGENDA DETAILS:

FROM:

Kelly Brown

CC: Darryn Burich & Alex Cameron

DATE OF MEMO: 10/20/2010

10/30/2019

MEMO DETAILS:

Attached for review are draft minutes from the July 11, 2019 meeting.

ATTACHMENTS:

Description

July 11, 2019 Draft Minutes



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT JULY 11, 2019 ASSEMBLY HALL 395 MAGNOLIA RD. PINEHURST, NORTH CAROLINA 5:00 PM

The Board of Adjustment held a Meeting at 5:00 p.m., Thursday, July 11, 2019, in the Assembly Hall, at 395 Magnolia Road, Pinehurst, North Carolina.

Board Members in Attendance:

Julia Latham, BOA Chair Leo Santowasso, BOA Member Joel Shriberg, BOA Member Sonja Rothstein, BOA Alternate Charles Russell, BOA Alternate

BOA Member Absent:

David Kelley, BOA Member Cyndie Burnett, BOA Alternate Jeramy Hooper, BOA Alternate Paul Roberts, BOA Alternate

Staff in Attendance:

Darryn Burich, Planning and Inspections Director Alex Cameron, Senior Planner Beth Dunn, Village Clerk Kelly Brown, Planning Administrative Assistant

I. Call to Order

Chair Julia Latham confirmed that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order.

Upon motion by Board Member Leo Santowasso and seconded by Board Member Charles Russell, the Board unanimously approved to seat Sonja Rothstein as a voting member of the Board by a vote of 4-0.

Upon motion by Mr. Santowasso, the Board unanimously approved to seat Charles Russell as a voting member of the Board by a vote of 4-0.

II. Approval of Minutes

a. June 6, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes

Upon a motion by Mr. Santowasso and seconded by Ms. Rothstein, the Board unanimously approved the June 6, 2019 regular meeting minutes as amended by a vote of 5-0.

III. Motion to Enter a Public Hearing

Upon a motion by Mr. Santowasso and seconded by Ms. Rothstein, the Board unanimously voted to recess the regular meeting and to enter into Public Hearing #1 by a vote of 5-0.

IV. Public Hearing #1

Senior Planner Alex Cameron and agents of the applicant Wayne Haddock and Mark Dean of Pinehurst Homes were sworn into the public meeting by Ms. Latham.

Mr. Cameron stated that the purpose of the public hearing is to receive testimony for a variance request from section 9.2a Tables of Dimensional Requirements for the property at 65 Cherokee Road, further identified by Moore County PID # 00014110. This property is located within the R-10 (High Density Residential) Zoning District and within the Historic Preservation Overlay District. Specifically, the applicant and owners, Michael and Moriah Brown are requesting a variance for 4 feet from the front setback and 2 foot 6 inch variance from one right side setback from the property line.

Mr. Cameron entered into the record the following documents included in the request: application with description, letter of authorization from the owner, existing photo, proposed elevation, existing survey with the current R-10 setbacks shown and surveyed site plan with proposed additions and encroachments, and staff report.

Mr. Cameron explained that the front of the home is currently nonconforming to the minimum front yard setback and encroaches approximately 4' into the setback. He stated the house was built before the Village of Pinehurst was incorporated.

Mr. Haddock read a letter on behalf of the homeowners. Mr. Haddock stated the intent is to change the front porch to be architecturally and historically correct and look like it did when the house was constructed about 120 years ago. Mr. Haddock stated the hardship results from the current setbacks being imposed on the house which was constructed prior to the incorportation of the Village.

Mr. Haddock explained that the front elevation currently encroaches 3.9 feet into the setback. He stated the front porch was constructed by a previous owner. Mr. Haddock stated the house does not currently have a front entry.

Mr. Haddock stated the home is currently 1520 square feet and does not meet the square footage requirement for R-10 zoning, which is 1800 square feet. He stated if they get approval to extend the front, it would allow them to do interior work within current setbacks so that the house will meet the 1800 square foot heated area requirement. Mr. Haddock stated that impervious surface was not an issue.

Mr. Cameron stated that the Pinehurst Development Ordiance allows for steps to encroach into the setback, so they would not need to be part of the applicant's variance request.

Upon question by Mr. Santowasso, Mr. Haddock explained that the new brick patio was in the current setback area and would be the same size as the existing wood deck it was replacing. He stated it would be 308 square feet.

Mr. Santowasso questioned the dimensions of the master bedroom and closet addition. Mr. Haddock stated the area would 108 square feet, but could not recall the dimensions.

Mr. Santowasso stated that the applicant had the total hard surface listed as 2600 feet, which did not include existing gravel walk or driveway. He stated that even if those were added in, they would still be below the hard surface standards. Mr. Dean that they calculated it would be 17% impervious surface. Mr. Cameron stated that is it 40% in the R-10 zoning district.

Mr. Haddock explained that the side encroachment is currently a porch with a side entry. They are proposing to enclose an addition on the side for a laundry utility room.

Mr. Santowasso questioned the garage addition encroaching into the side setback. Mr. Cameron explained that the dashed setback line on the survey applies to principal structures, not accessory structures. He stated that even if garage addition is non-conforming to the accessory structure setbacks, the proposed addition would keep same general footprint, therefore would not encroach any further.

Mr. Russell questioned if the only part of the project that is being done to meet a historical standard was the front porch and if everything else was being done as a modernization. Mr. Haddock stated that all proposed changes will match existing structures and materials.

Mr. Shriberg noted that if the house was built today, there would be plenty of room to the rear and left side to build without encroaching on setbacks. He stated that when the home was built, no one knew the Village was going to exist or restrictions would be imposed.

Upon question by Mr. Santowasso, Mr. Haddock stated that the applicants understood that Historic Preservation Commission approval was required.

V. Discuss and Consider a Variance for a Setback at 65 Cherokee Road

Ms. Latham stated that the Board would remain in public hearing during discussion and voting.

Ms. Latham stated the hardship is that their home needs to be returned to a useful and historically accurate state, and that it results from conditons having to do with the zoning prior to Village incorporation.

Mr. Shriberg stated that Board is being asked to alleviate a hardship created by the Village.

Ms. Latham stated she was concerned about the laundry room addition, as there was no floor plan to see if it could be added somewhere else in the house and it is not of historical value.

Ms. Rothstein stated she agreed with the proposed changes.

Mr. Russell stated the if the Board accepts the logic that the ordinance created the hardship on the front of the house, then it must be accepted that the ordinance created a hardship on the side of the house.

Mr. Santowasso stated the request is asking to add a utility room that is desperately needed.

Upon a motion by Mr. Shriberg, seconded by Ms. Rothstein, the Board moved to approve the variance request for the property at 65 Cherokee Road, requesting a variance for 4 feet from the front setback and 2 foot 6 inch variance from one side setback from the property line and to enter the following into the record:

- A. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance. It shall not be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property;
- B. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for granting a variance;
- C. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship;
- D. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

Ms. Latham and Mr. Russell stated they would like to continue to discuss the request before voting. Mr. Cameron advised that the Mr. Shriberg discuss the findings of fact as it related to the motion.

Mr. Shriberg stated that the hardship comes from the setbacks being imposed on a home built before there was a development ordinance, based on the evidence that has been provided at the public hearing.

The Board voted to deny the request for a variance at 65 Cherokee Road by a vote of 3-2.

Roll Call Vote:

Mr. Shriberg	Approve
Mr. Russell	Deny
Mr. Santowasso	Approve
Ms. Rothstein	Approve
Ms. Latham	Deny

Ms. Latham stated she had an issue with the laundry room. She stated she sees hardship in owning a historical home that you cannot bring back to its former glory and sees hardship due to the work done by previous owners and how the house is sited on the lot. Ms. Latham stated she sees where a washer and dryer could go else where in the house and had not had the applicant satisfy why a laundry room variance is needed based on material evidence in front of the Board.

Mr. Russell stated concern that if the applicant wants to appeal, the Board will be faulted because of the logic that if the front setback variance is accepted, then the side setback variance should be accepted.

Upon a motion by Ms. Latham, seconded by Mr. Santowasso, the Board moved to approve the variance request for the property at 65 Cherokee Road for a variance for 4 feet from the front setback with the condition that the side yard setback variance not be granted, and enter the following into the record:

- A. The applicant provided testimony that unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance. The applicant provided testimony to provide a historic front entry to a historic home in Pinehurst, one of the first seven homes in the area;
- B. The applicant provided testimony that the hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as the location within the Historic Preservation Overlay District and that the home was originally built and added on to in a manner that is non-conforming with current setback regulations;
- C. The applicant provided testimony that the hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The actions were taken by previous owners who had added on to the home in a manner that is non-conforming with current regulations;
- D. The applicant provided testimony that the requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved. The home can now be restored to resemble the original front entry of the home from the 1895 era.

The Board unanimously approved the motion by a vote of 5-0.

Roll Call Vote:

Approve
Approve
Approve
Approve
Approve

VI. Public Hearing #2

Owner and applicant Donald Zeilstra was sworn into the public hearing by Ms. Latham.

Mr. Cameron explained the purpose of this public hearing is to receive testimony for a variance request from section 9.2a Tables of Dimensional Requirements for the property at 5 York Place, further identified by Moore County PID # 00017008. This property is located within the R-10 (High Density Residential) Zoning District. Specifically, the applicant and owners, Don and Betty Zeilstra are requesting a 5 foot variance on the 25' rear yard setback.

Mr. Cameron entered into the record the following documents included in the request: application, supplemental material, property survey, plat from 1974, staff report, written decision.

Mr. Zeilstra explained that he wanted to build a home on the lot.

Mr. Haddock explained that the property was originally recorded by Pinehurst Enterprises Diamondhead in the 1970's. He stated that when the Village of Pinehurst adopted the Pinehurst Development Ordinance (PDO), the setbacks changed and affected Mr. Zeilstra's property.

Mr. Haddock stated the hardship is designing and building a house that is suitable for the lot; he consulted with three architectural designers who were unable to design a suitable home.

Mr. Haddock provided a statement of his expert testimony as a civil engineer and builder.

Mr. Haddock explained that he provided the Board with the floor plans of two specs homes that are often built in the neighborhood, the Brownstone and the Driftwood. He provided a site plan showing both homes sited on the lot with setback lines. Mr. Haddock stated Brownstone could only be built on the property with a 5' foot setback.

Mr. Haddock stated when the lot was recorded by Diamondhead, the front and rear setbacks were 20 feet and the side setbacks were 10 feet. When Village adopted its PDO, the setbacks at the rear changed to 25 feet, the front setback changed to 30 feet, and the side setbacks changed to 15 feet. He stated the cul-de-sac affects this lot as it encroaches back into the lot.

Mr. Haddock explained that Mr. Zeilstra owns a home on the property next to the lot requesting a variance. He stated that Mr. Zeilstra's existing house is currently 10 feet over the current setback line as it was built before the PDO was adopted. He stated that 5 out of 8 houses on the same street are outside of the current setback lines.

Mr. Shriberg asked how the other houses in the neighborhood got a variance. Mr. Haddock stated that they did not receive a variance as they were built before the PDO was adopted in 1996. Mr. Cameron stated many homes on York Place were built between 1983-1994.

Mr. Santowasso noted that the property is covered with longleaf pines, especially around perimeter, and that they would likely be cut down. He asked if the applicant thought it necessary to add buffers to the side rear yard. Mr. Zeilstra stated he did not think it was necessary to provide more buffering. Mr. Haddock stated that you could not see the neighboring house from the back of the property.

Mr. Santowasso asked who drew the houses on the site plan. Mr. Haddock answered that surveyor Stephen Sheffield created the survey and placed the houses on the site plan.

Mr. Russell confirmed with Mr. Haddock that the Brownstone floor plan is what was being proposed to be built. Mr. Haddock stated the home would be 1900 square feet when the bonus room is completed.

VII. Discuss and Consider Variance for a Setback at 5 York Place.

Ms. Latham stated the Board received expert testimony that without this variance it would be impossible to build a home that meets 1800 square footage requirement in R-10 zoning distric on this lot.

Mr. Santowasso stated there had been houses constructed on the street within the 25 foot setback; however, the properties were created in 1973 that preceeded any official ordinance in the Village of Pinehurst.

Upon a motion by Mr. Santowasso, seconded by Ms. Rothstein, the Board moved to approve the variance request for the property at 5 York Place requesting a variance for a 5 foot variance on the 25' rear yard setback, further identified by Moore County PID # 00017008, located within the R-10 (High Density Residential) Zoning District with the following findings of fact and conclusions:

- A. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance.
- B. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for granting a variance;
- C. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner.
- D. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

The Board unanimously approved the request for a variance at 5 York Place by a vote of 5-0.

Roll call vote:

Ms. Latham	Yes
Ms. Rothstein	Yes
Mr. Shriberg	Yes
Mr. Russell	Yes
Mr. Santowasso	Yes

Upon motion by Mr. Santowasso, seconded by Ms. Rothstein, the Board unanimously moved to close the public hearing and enter into regular meeting by a vote of 5-0.

VIII. Review and Consider New Rules of Procedure.

The Board agreed to review and consider the Rules of Procedure at their next regular meeting.

IX. Next Meeting Date

August 1, 2019 at 4:30 pm (If the Board has business to conduct)

X. Motion to Adjourn

Upon a motion by Mr. Santowasso, the Board unanimously approved to adjourn the regular meeting at 6:27 pm by a vote of 5-0.

Respectfully Submitted,

Kelly Brown Planning Administrative Assistant Village of Pinehurst

A recording and videotape of this meeting are located on the Village website: <u>www.vopnc.org</u>.

The Village of Pinehurst is a charming, vibrant community which reflects our rich history and traditions. Mission: Promote, enhance, and sustain the quality of life for residents, businesses, and visitors. Values: Service, Initiative, Teamwork, and Improvement.



REVIEW AND CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE REVISED RULES OF PROCEDURE. ADDITIONAL AGENDA DETAILS:

FROM:

Alex Cameron

CC: Darryn Burich & Kelly Brown

DATE OF MEMO: 10/30/2019

MEMO DETAILS:

Staff has made revisions to the Rules of Procedure based on feedback from the Board at the July 11th meeting. If the Board chooses, they can adopt the revised Rules of Procedure or consider more revisions.

ATTACHMENTS:

Description

Draft Rules of Procedure

RULES OF PROCEDURE

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT VILLAGE OF PINEHURST, NORTH CAROLINA

I. General Rules

- A. <u>General Authority</u>. Under authority of the General Statutes of North Carolina, §160A-388, and the Pinehurst Development Ordinance (hereinafter "PDO") of the Village of Pinehurst, North Carolina, the Village of Pinehurst Board of Adjustment (hereinafter "Board") hereby adopts these general rules for the hearing of matters coming before it.
- B. <u>Specific Authority</u>. The Board's specific approval authority is established in Chapter 5 of the PDO, and the Board shall neither have power to vary requirements of any other section of the PDO, nor other local laws or the General Statutes of North Carolina.

II. Officers and Duties

- A. <u>Chairperson</u> (hereinafter "Chair"). The Chair shall be appointed by the Village of Pinehurst Village Council (hereinafter "Village Council"). The Chair shall decide on all points of order and procedure, subject to the rules herein, unless directed otherwise by a majority of the Board in session at the time. The term of office for the Chair shall be as set by Village Council or until a new Chairperson is named by Village Council.
- B. <u>Vice Chairperson</u> (hereinafter "Vice Chair"). A Vice Chairperson shall be elected by the Board from among its members. The term of office for the Vice Chair shall be the same as that of the Chair. The Vice Chair shall serve as Acting Chair in the Chairperson's absence and at such times shall have the same powers and duties as the Chair.

III. Board Powers and Duties

- A. <u>**Powers**</u>. The presiding officer (Chair or Vice Chair) shall have the following powers and duties:
 - 1. With the Board's informal consent, to append the meeting's agenda;
 - 2. To rule motions in or out of order, including any motion patently offered for obstructive or dilatory purposes;
 - 3. To determine whether a speaker has gone beyond reasonable standards of courtesy in his or her remarks and to entertain and rule on objections from other members on this ground;

- 4. To entertain and answer questions of parliamentary law or procedure;
- 5. To call a brief recess at any time;
- 6. To continue a meeting to a future date and;
- 7. To adjourn in an emergency.

IV. Members

- A. <u>Source of Board Members</u>. Members of the Board shall be drawn from the Village of Pinehurst's Planning and Zoning Board. Membership shall include five named permanent members; the remaining Planning and Zoning members shall serve as alternates.
- B. **Board Member Responsibilities**. Members of the Board shall have the following duties and responsibilities:
 - 1. Those duties and responsibilities outlined in the General Statutes of North Carolina, §160A-388;
 - 2. Other such duties as assigned by the Chair.

C. Board Member Conduct.

- 1. Members of the Board may be removed for cause, which shall be defined as dishonorable conduct that has compromised the integrity of the Board.
- 2. No Board member shall take part in the hearing, consideration, or determination of any case in which he/she is personally or financially interested.
- 3. No Board member shall vote on any matter deciding an application or appeal unless he/she shall have attended the public hearing on that application or appeal. If a matter is continued to a subsequent date following a public hearing, a Board member who was not present at the public hearing may vote on the matter only if the member has reviewed the minutes of the proceeding/hearing.
- 4. Members of the Board will not express individual opinions on the proper judgment of any case with any parties thereto prior to its determination of that case. Violation of this rule shall be cause for dismissal from the Board.

V. Meetings

A. <u>Organization Meeting</u>. The regularly scheduled December meeting will serve as the annual organization meeting for the Board of Adjustment. At such meeting a Vice

Chair shall be nominated and elected by the Members. In addition, any other governance/protocol matters will be reviewed and decided upon by the Members.

- B. <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the Chairperson. At least 48 hours notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be given by either the Clerk or the Chair to each member of the Board and to anyone who is required to receive notice.
- C. **Quorum**. A quorum shall consist of three Members of the Board at least one of whom should be Chair or Vice Chair. All matters or appeals shall be decided by majority vote of the Members. A concurring vote of four Members of the Board present at the hearing of a particular case shall be necessary to grant a variance.
- D. <u>Conduct of Meetings</u>. All meetings shall be open to the public, subject to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes, § 143-318.11 pertaining to closed sessions of public bodies. The order of business at regular meetings shall be as follows: (a) consideration and approval of Board minutes (b) hearing of cases, beginning first with any unfinished business before moving to new business; and (c) any other matters properly brought before the Board.
- E. <u>**Time and Place**</u>. Regular meetings will be held on the first Thursday of each month at 4:30PM or following the Planning and Zoning Board meeting. Meeting location will be in the Village of Pinehurst Assembly Hall.

VI. Appeals and Applications

A. <u>Procedure for Filing Applications</u>.

- 1. All applications for hearing shall be filed with the Planning and Inspections Department, which shall act as Clerk for the Board in receiving this notice. All applications shall be made upon the form furnished for that purpose, and all required information shall be provided thereon before an appeal or any application shall be considered as having been filed.
- 2. Any person with standing may appeal any order or act of the Zoning Administrator or an administrative official pertaining to enforcement of the PDO. Any such appeal of an administrative decision shall be filed with the Village Clerk.
- 3. No appeal shall be heard by the Board unless notice thereof is filed within 30 days after the interested party or parties receive notice of the order, requirement, decision or determination by an administrative official.
- 4. No application shall be considered by the Board unless a completed application is received in accordance with Chapter 5 of the PDO.

B. <u>Fees</u>. No application or notice of appeal shall be considered as having been completed until there has been paid to the Village of Pinehurst a filing fee to cover the cost of providing notice and such further investigation or verification of the application as is necessary.

C. <u>Hearings.</u>

- 1. <u>Time</u>. After receipt by the appropriate Village official of the completed notice of appeal or application, the Clerk to the Board shall schedule the time for a hearing, which shall be either at the next regularly scheduled meeting or at a special meeting.
- 2. <u>Notice</u>. The Board shall give public notice of the hearings by all of the following means:
 - a) By making notification by mail all property owners of parcels of land abutting the parcel of land that is the subject of the hearing and to any other persons entitled to receive notice under the PDO at least 10 days but no more than 25 days prior to the hearing.
 - b) By posting notice of the hearing at a prominent place or places on the property which is the subject of the action at least 10 days but no more than 25 days prior to the hearing.

All such notices shall state the location of the building or lot, the general nature of the question involved, and the time and place of the hearing.

- 3. <u>Conduct of Hearing</u>. Any party with standing may appear in person or by attorney at the hearing. The order of business for each hearing shall be as follows:
 - a) The Chair shall direct and shall call the case as advertised on the official agenda.
 - b) A member of the Village of Pinehurst Planning and Inspections Department shall make a statement regarding the manner in which the application relates to the PDO.
 - c) Either the applicant or the applicant's attorney shall present the arguments in support of his/her case or application.
 - d) Either persons with standing opposed to granting the application or their attorneys shall present the argument against the application.
 - e) Both sides will be permitted to present rebuttals to opposing testimony, at the discretion of the Chair.

- f) Witnesses may be called and competent evidence may be submitted.
- g) Any presentation on behalf of either an applicant or a party with standing who are not natural persons must be made by an attorney.
- 4. <u>Postponement</u>. Requests for postponing or continuing the hearing for good cause on a particular appeal or application may be made either to the Chair or to the Board.
- 5. <u>Withdrawal</u>. An application or appeal will be considered to have been withdrawn under the following circumstances: (a) The applicant submits a written request to withdraw the application or appeal; (b) The property owner, if different than the applicant, submits a notarized request to withdraw the application or appeal; (c) The Board requests the applicant to furnish additional information within a specified period of time, and such information is not furnished by the applicant within the time period allowed; (d) Without prior notification to the Chair, applicant does not appear at the scheduled hearing to testify regarding the merits of the application; or (e) The applicant appears at the scheduled hearing and requests that the application be withdrawn. The Chairperson has authority to determine whether an application or appeal has been withdrawn or may be considered withdrawn.
- 6. <u>Rehearing</u>. A Motion for a Rehearing may be made by the applicant or any party with standing by filing the appropriate application form with the Planning and Inspections Department within 10 days after the Board votes on the Application and announces its decision in the original case. Only one Motion for Rehearing may be filed for any case.

Upon receipt of a Motion for a Rehearing in proper form, the Clerk will schedule the Motion for consideration by the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting after proper advertising in accordance with these rules and the PDO. Evidence presented on a Motion for Rehearing shall be limited to only new evidence that was not submitted to the Board during the hearing of the original application. Such evidence may include evidence of changes in circumstances or conditions since the hearing on the original application.

At the conclusion of the presentation of the evidence, the Board will determine whether to grant the rehearing. If the rehearing is granted, the rehearing will ordinarily be held at the same meeting at which the Motion is considered, although the Board may set the rehearing at a later scheduled meeting.

7. <u>Refiling</u>. Except as provided in Section VI.C.6 herein, once the Board has made its decision in a case, any applicant shall be prohibited from

submitting the same request for the subject property for a period of one year from the date of the previous application.

- 8. <u>Review</u>. A review proceeding will be scheduled when a review proceeding is made a condition of the issuance of a variance.
- 9. <u>Appeals</u>. An appeal from a decision by the Board of Adjustment must be made to the Superior Court of Moore County within 30 days of the decision, and in accordance with the General Statutes of North Carolina, §160A-388.

D. Decisions.

- 1. <u>Time</u>. Decisions by the Board shall be made as soon as practicable after the hearing. The Board will ordinarily vote on the application and announce its decision at the same meeting at which the hearing takes place. The final decision of the Board is made when the written decision is signed by the Chair and filed with the Board Clerk.
- 2. <u>Form</u>. Written notice of the decision in a case shall be given to the applicant in accordance with the notification requirements in section Chapter 5 of the PDO after the minutes setting out the Board's final decision are approved. The record shall show the reasons for the decision with a summary of the evidence introduced in the findings of facts made by the Board.
 - a) <u>Variances</u>. Where a variance is granted, the record shall state any unnecessary hardship upon which the variance request was based and which the Board finds to exist. The record shall state what, if any, conditions and safeguards are imposed by the Board in connection with a granting of a variance.
 - b) <u>Interpretations.</u> The decision may reverse or affirm wholly or partly or modify the order, requirements, decision, or determination being appealed.

VII. AMENDMENTS

These rules may, within the limits allowed by law, be amended at any time by an affirmative vote of not less than a simple majority of the Board, provided that such amendment be presented in writing at a regular or special meeting before the meeting at which the vote is taken. All such amendments must be reviewed by the Attorney of the Village of Pinehurst prior to their taking effect.

ADOPTED this the _____day of _____, 20___

VILLAGE OF PINEHURST BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

, Chairman

, Director, Planning and Inspections